
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Ben Baugh, Democratic Services Officer on 
01432 261882 or e-mail ben.baugh2@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of 
the meeting. 

 

 

 

Agenda 
 

Connected Communities 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 27 February 2024 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: Conference Room 1 - Herefordshire Council, Plough 
Lane Offices, Hereford, HR4 0LE 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Ben Baugh, Democratic Services Officer 

Tel: 01432 261882 

Email: ben.baugh2@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the meeting of the Connected 
Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Membership 

 

  
Chairperson Councillor Ellie Chowns 
Vice-chairperson Councillor Ed O'Driscoll 
   
 Councillor Bruce Baker 

Councillor Frank Cornthwaite 
Councillor David Hitchiner 
Councillor Roger Phillips 
Councillor Ben Proctor 

 

 
   

 
 



 
Herefordshire Council  27 FEBRUARY 2024 
 

 

Agenda 

 Pages 
  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

2.   NAMED SUBSTITUTES 
 

 

 To receive details of any councillor nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a member of the committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

11 - 18 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2023. 
 

 

HOW TO SUBMIT QUESTIONS 
 

 

The deadline for the submission of questions for this meeting is 5.00 pm on 
Wednesday 21 February 2024. 
 

Questions must be submitted to councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk.  
Questions sent to any other address may not be accepted. 
 

Accepted questions and the responses will be published as a supplement to 
the agenda papers prior to the meeting.  Further information and guidance is 
available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/getinvolved 
 

 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 

 To receive any written questions from members of the public. 
 

 

6.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 

 To receive any written questions from members of the council. 
 

 

7.   THE POLICY, PRIORITISATION AND DELIVERY OF SECTION 106 
FUNDING 
 

To Follow 

 The report sets out the policy that enables the council to secure section 106 
funding, the mechanisms for identifying projects to be incorporated into the 
legal agreements and reports on the delivery of section 106 funded schemes 
since Cabinet approved the delivery model on 2 March 2023. 
 

 

8.   DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 

 

 The next scheduled meeting is Wednesday 8 May 2024 10.00 am 
 

 

mailto:councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/getinvolved
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1157&MId=9099&Ver=4




The public’s rights to information and attendance at meetings 

You have a right to: 

 Attend all council, cabinet, committee and sub-committee meetings unless the business to be 
transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

 Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.  
Agenda and reports (relating to items to be considered in public) are available at 
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings 

 Inspect minutes of the council and all committees and sub-committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the cabinet or individual cabinet members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

 Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to four 
years from the date of the meeting (a list of the background papers to a report is given at the 
end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in 
writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

 Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all councillors with 
details of the membership of cabinet and of all committees and sub-committees.  Information 
about councillors is available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/councillors 

 Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the council have delegated decision 
making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.  The council’s constitution is 
available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution 

 Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
council, cabinet, committees and sub-committees and to inspect documents. 

Recording of meetings 

Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that it 
does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 

Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you 
should let the governance support team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who 
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware. 

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 

The council may make a recording of this public meeting or stream it live to the council’s 
website.  Such videos are made available for members of the public via the council’s YouTube 
channel at www.youtube.com/@HerefordshireCouncil/streams 

Public transport links 

The Herefordshire Council office at Plough Lane is located off Whitecross Road in Hereford, 
approximately 1 kilometre from the City Bus Station. 

Bus maps are available here: www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/download/78/bus_maps 

5

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/councillors
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution
https://www.youtube.com/@HerefordshireCouncil/streams
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/download/78/bus_maps




 

      

The seven principles of public life  

(Nolan Principles) 

 

1. Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

2. Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. 
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material 
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve 
any interests and relationships. 

3. Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, 
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

4. Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions 
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

5. Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent 
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear 
and lawful reasons for so doing. 

6. Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 

7. Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour and 
treat others with respect. They should actively promote and robustly support the 
principles and challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

 

7





Guide to Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee  Updated 5 July 2023 

Committee membership 

Scrutiny is a statutory role fulfilled by councillors who are not members of the cabinet.  

The role of the scrutiny committees is to help develop policy, to carry out reviews of council and 
other local services, and to hold decision makers to account for their actions and decisions. 

Council has decided that there will be five scrutiny committees.  The committees reflect the 
balance of political groups on the council. 

The Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee consists of 7 councillors. 

Councillor Party 

Ellie Chowns (Chairperson) The Green Party 

Ed O'Driscoll (Vice-Chairperson) Liberal Democrats 

Bruce Baker Conservative Party 

Frank Cornthwaite Conservative Party 

David Hitchiner Independents for Herefordshire  

Ben Proctor Liberal Democrats 

Rob Williams Conservative Party 

Scrutiny functions 

The committees have the power: 

(a) to review, influence policy or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in 
connection with the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the 
executive, 

(b) to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive with respect to the 
discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the executive, 

(c) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge of any functions which are not the responsibility of the executive, 

(d) to make reports or recommendations to council or the cabinet with respect to the 
discharge of any functions which are not the responsibility of the executive, 

(e) to make reports or recommendations to council or the cabinet on matters which affect the 
authority's area or the inhabitants of that area, 

(f) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions and to make 
reports or recommendations to the council with respect to the discharge of those functions. 
In this regard crime and disorder functions means: 

(i) a strategy for the reduction of crime and disorder in the area (including anti-social 
and other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment); and 

(ii) a strategy for combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in the 
area; and 

(iii) a strategy for the reduction of re-offending in the area 

9



 

Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee  Updated 5 July 2023 

(g) to review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of the 
health service in its area and make reports and recommendations to a responsible person 
on any matter it has reviewed or scrutinised or to be consulted by a relevant NHS body or 
health service provider in accordance with the Regulations (2013/218) as amended. In this 
regard health service includes services designed to secure improvement 

(i) in the physical and mental health of the people of England, and 

(ii) in the prevention, diagnosis and treatment of physical and mental illness, and 

(iii) any services provided in pursuance of arrangements under section 75 in relation to 
the exercise of health-related functions of a local authority. 

(h) to review and scrutinise the exercise by risk management authorities of flood risk 
management functions or coastal erosion risk management functions which may affect the 
local authority's area. 

(i) To track actions and undertake an annual effectiveness review 

The remit of Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee 

 Talk Business programme, advice and support 

 Development investment plans - town, market town, rural, Hereford City 

 Hereford Enterprise Zone 

 Higher education development 

 Adult and community learning programme 

 Apprenticeships 

 Fastershire programme 

 Digital connectivity 

 Heritage, culture and tourism 

 Social value procurement policy 

 Planning 

 Licensing 

 Regulatory 

 Capital highway maintenance, asset management and infrastructure repair 

 Council housing 

 Statutory community safety and policing scrutiny powers 

Who attends scrutiny committee meetings? 

 Members of the committee, including the chairperson and vice-chairperson. 

 Cabinet members, they are not members of the committee but attend principally to answer 
any questions the committee may have and inform the debate. 

 Officers of the council to present reports and give technical advice to the committee. 

 People external to the council invited to provide information to the committee. 

 Other councillors can attend but can only speak at the discretion of the chairperson. 

10

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=62&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IC11DDC30829111DBA731C284100B17B4


 

Minutes of the meeting of the Connected Communities Scrutiny 
Committee held in Conference Room 1, Herefordshire Council 
Offices, Plough Lane, Hereford, HR4 0LE on Wednesday 8 
November 2023 at 10.00 am 
  

Committee members 
present in person 
and voting: 

Councillors: Ellie Chowns (Chairperson), Frank Cornthwaite, 
David Hitchiner, Ed O'Driscoll (Vice-Chairperson), Roger Phillips, 
Ben Proctor and Allan Williams 

 

  
Others in 
attendance: 

M Averill (Service Director Environment and Highways), B Baugh (Democratic 
Services Officer), V Hammond (Senior Transport Planning Officer), J McCann 
(Principal Transport Planner at WSP), W Merriman (Senior Project Manager), J Myatt 
(Associate Director at PJA), G Pickford (Interim Head of Transportation and Parking), 
S Pope (Technical Director at WSP), Councillor P Price (Cabinet Member Transport 
and Infrastructure), A Rees-Glinos (Governance Support Assistant), R Walters 
(Consultant at PJA) and D Webb (Statutory Scrutiny Officer) 

[Note: Click here for the link to the agenda and to the video recording of this meeting; the 
links provided were correct at the time of publication of this minutes document] 

 
18. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Bruce Baker. 
 

19. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
 
Councillor Allan Williams was present as the substitute member for Councillor Bruce Baker. 
 

20. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

21. MINUTES   
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were received. 
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 October 2023 be confirmed as a 

correct record and be signed by the Chairperson. 
 

22. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC   
 
No questions had been received from members of the public. 
 

23. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL   
 
No questions had been received from councillors. 
 

24. HEREFORDSHIRE LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN   
 

11

AGENDA ITEM 4

https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1157&MId=9096&Ver=4


 

The Cabinet Member Transport and Infrastructure and the Interim Head of 
Transportation and Parking introduced the item.  The committee was advised that the 
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) was a strategic approach to 
identifying improvements, driven by data and analysis of commuting, leisure, and 
everyday trips. 
 
The principal points of the discussion are summarised below: 
 
1. A committee member noted that the Technical Guidance for Local Authorities (link 

to the Department of Transport (DfT) guidance) suggested various data sources, 
with one being app-based data for existing cycle trips (e.g. Strava).  Comments 
were made about the potential over-reliance on app-based data and the need to 
mitigate related biases, including the possibility that certain groups of people could 
be missed, such as serving personnel who may avoid the use of geo-tagging apps.  
The PJA Consultant provided the committee with an overview of the demand-led 
approach to identifying desire lines. 

 
2. The Interim Head of Transport and Parking reported that there would be 

engagement with some stakeholder groups on the LCWIP before broader 
consultation and engagement aligned to the Local Transport Plan (LTP) and the 
Local Plan.  With attention drawn to the LCWIP programme and progress 
(paragraph 10, agenda page 15), committee members expressed concerns about 
the lack of engagement to date and commented on the need for key stakeholders, 
including town and parish councils, to be enabled to input concerns and ideas.  
The Chairperson considered that consultation on the LCWIP should be on a 
standalone basis and undertaken as soon as possible. 

 
3. The Cabinet Member Transport and Infrastructure acknowledged the need for 

effective engagement, including with stakeholders in rural areas, and the 
challenges associated with the timescales for key strategies and plans. 

 
4. The Interim Head of Transport and Parking reported that Herefordshire Council 

was working on cross-border linkages with neighbouring local authorities in 
Monmouthshire, Powys, and Shropshire as part of the Marches Forward 
Partnership.  It was noted that work was outstanding with Gloucestershire.  The 
Chairperson commented on the need to coordinate with all neighbouring 
authorities. 

 
5. The Vice-Chairperson noted that a key output would be ‘a prioritised programme of 

infrastructure improvements for future investment’ (paragraph 31 b, agenda page 
19) and suggested that this could be considered for future scrutiny activity. 

 
6. The Interim Head of Transport and Parking reported that cycling and walking 

network mapping had not yet been received; the consultant, Phil Jones Associates 
(PJA), was auditing possible cycling routes to confirm that they were achievable. 

 
7. In response to a comment about the interfaces between cycle routes and busy 

roads, the Service Director Environment and Highways provided an outline of the 
proposed infrastructure improvements on Holme Lacy Road in Hereford. 

 
8. The Interim Head of Transport and Parking advised the committee that the outputs 

from the LCWIP would help to inform the LTP; evidence would be assessed in 
relation to different ideas (e.g. a north to south cycle route, utilising disused railway 
lines, etc), including opportunities to attract investment.  The Chairperson 
commented on the level of local interest in greenways in several locations but 
expressed concern that this would not be reflected in the data on existing 
commuting, leisure, and everyday trips. 

12

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908535/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance-document.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908535/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance-document.pdf


 

 
9. The Vice-Chairperson noted that £60k had been allocated to PJA to develop the 

LCWIP and a breakdown of the spending was requested.  The Senior Project 
Manager reported that £10k had been committed towards consultation and 
additional funding of £33k had been received from Active Travel England.  
Committee members emphasised the importance of pro-active engagement with 
local groups and communities to explore ideas and challenges (e.g. securing co-
operation from multiple landowners).  It was acknowledged that the council should 
be ambitious in scope in the best interests of Herefordshire. 

 
10. The PJA Consultant advised that reference to ‘distances of 2km and 10km 

illustrate the reachable areas by walking and cycling’ (paragraph 13 b ii, agenda 
page 16) related to DfT guidance but the Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) and, 
some of the routes being explored, did take into account the wider use of e-bikes in 
the future.  The committee was also advised that the technical guidance was being 
updated by the DfT, partly in response to representations made by rural 
authorities. 

 
11. With attention drawn to the sentence that the Hereford City Masterplan ‘contains 

the LCWIP which extends the city boundary and identifies key links into the rest of 
the county’ (paragraph 4, agenda page 14), the Chairperson requested that 
clarification be provided about the nature and timing of engagement and 
consultation on the LCWIP elements of the masterplan. 

 
At the conclusion of the debate, the committee discussed potential recommendations 
and the following resolution was agreed.  
 
Resolved: That it be recommended to the executive: 
 
1. That more and better secondary data be used, particularly that data beyond 

Strava is used for leisure, and that the LCWIP states and mitigates biases in 
that data. 
 

2. That public consultation be done, including but not limited to city, town and 
parish councils, walking and cycling groups, key local institutions and 
employers, in line with DfT LCWIP engagement guidance, and 

 
a. that significant funds be allocated to do this (noting that there is 

potentially £43k already available for this exercise); 
 

b. that this is done ASAP and certainly commenced before the end of this 
calendar year; that such consultation is done on a standalone basis 
without waiting for LTP and Local plan consultation;  

 
c. that such consultation acknowledges that in many cases there may be 

synergies between LCWIP and wider highway maintenance and 
improvements. 

 
3. That consultation is done on the LCWIP elements of the Hereford City 

Masterplan ASAP. 
 

4. That Herefordshire Council coordinates with neighbouring local authorities 
sooner rather than later both in terms of information gathering and 
consultation on potential routes. 
 

5. That potential long distance routes including greenways are included in the 
LCWIP consultation and development process. 

13



 

 
6. That the cycle network plan and walking network plan be published to 

scrutiny ASAP. 
 

7. That a breakdown of the spending with PJA be provided. 
 
[Note: There was a short adjournment before the next item] 
 

25. NEW HEREFORDSHIRE LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN   
 
The Cabinet Member Transport and Infrastructure and the Interim Head of 
Transportation and Parking introduced the item.  The committee was advised that the 
Local Transport Plan (LTP) was as a key strategy document to access transport funding 
for the county, guidance on the preparation of new LTPs was awaited from the 
Department for Transport (DfT), there were linkages between the new Herefordshire LTP 
and other strategies and plans, and attention was drawn to factors in the wider context of 
the plan (paragraph 23, agenda page 26). 
 
The principal points of the discussion are summarised below: 
 
1. The Interim Head of Transportation and Parking reported that the LTP was in the 

early stages of development, there had been an extensive carbon emissions 
modelling exercise, and the objectives for the LTP would be considered by Cabinet 
(link to the issue details). 
 

2. The Interim Head of Transportation and Parking advised that other data would be 
used in subsequent stages to develop the long list of potential interventions, 
alongside consultation, feedback, and prioritisation.  Committee members 
commented on the need for contextual data to help frame discussions about the 
objectives.  The committee was advised that carbon emissions data had not been 
published with the agenda, as officers considered that supporting narrative was 
needed from the specialist consultants, WSP.  The Chairperson emphasised the 
need to conduct business in an open and transparent manner, and requested that 
all background materials be published in full for subsequent meetings. 

 
3. The Vice-Chairperson noted that reducing carbon emissions would form a key part 

of the LTP and questioned the research being undertaken in the context of the 
other goals, such as supporting economic growth, promoting equality of 
opportunity, contributing to better health, safety, and security, and improving 
quality of life and a healthy natural environment.  The Interim Head of 
Transportation and Parking acknowledged that, as a significant change to previous 
plans, the report had focussed on carbon emissions but there would be cross-
references to other strategies and plans, such as the Big Economic Plan.  The 
Vice-Chairperson commented on the need to explore potential initiatives, such as 
convenient and reliable public electric vehicle (EV) charging infrastructure, and co-
working hubs. 

 
4. The Chairperson drew attention to paragraph 14 (agenda page 25) which stated 

‘… transport in Herefordshire represented around 26% of total emissions’, to the 
council’s website which stated ‘In Herefordshire, transport accounts for 36% of our 
emissions’ (link to the website’), and to paragraph 24 e) (agenda page 26) which 
stated ‘41% of emissions are for trips greater than 50 miles'.  The Chairperson 
expressed concerns about the inconsistency in the way that carbon emissions had 
been presented, with a mix of territorial and consumption calculations. The WSP 
Technical Director reported that the quantification of emissions was based on the 
recommended standard set out in unpublished, draft guidance.  The Chairperson 
emphasised the need to address the inconsistency, particularly given the potential 

14

https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50044972&Opt=0
https://zerocarbon.herefordshire.gov.uk/transport/transport-details/


 

implications for the prioritisation of effort.  The committee discussed the differences 
in approach and the importance of modal shift for short journeys. 

 
5. A committee member made comments about the need to work in partnership to 

address issues in rural areas, including National Grid capacity, demand response 
transport, and railway infrastructure. 

 
6. The Interim Head of Transportation and Parking reported that Midlands Connect 

was in the early stages of looking at bus franchising.  A committee member 
suggested that a potential item on bus franchising could be added to the work 
programme long list.  The Chairperson drew attention to recent innovations such 
as the Daffodil Line in Herefordshire and the fflecsi bus service in Wales. 

 
7. A committee member made comments about economic and other factors which 

may influence journey patterns made by individuals within households, including 
employment opportunities and education provision. 

 
8. In response to a question about the consideration of transport carbon emissions in 

relation to river crossing options, the Interim Head of Transportation and Parking 
advised that the LTP would look at the carbon effects, impacts and mitigations 
associated with major highway infrastructure.  It was reported that the next stage of 
work on the LTP would involve looking at types of interventions. 

 
9. The Interim Head of Transportation and Parking reported that there was close 

working between the LTP and the Local Plan teams to respond to potential 
changes to land use or provision, and the LTP would be reviewed regularly. 

 
10. Clarifications were provided about the ‘analysis of 17 other authorities’ LTPs’ and 

the meaning of ‘streets for people philosophy, and modal hierarchy’ (paragraph 33 
d, agenda page 27). 

 
11. The Interim Head of Transportation and Parking advised that the alignment of 

consultation processes should mitigate the risk ‘It is likely that public and 
stakeholder consultation for the LTP will overlap with that of the Local Plan and 
other transportation projects, running the risk of confusion or consultation fatigue 
for partners, stakeholders and the public.’ (paragraph 50, agenda page 30). 

 
12. The Chairperson expressed concerns about the lack of clarity about the 

consultation process and considered it surprising that there had not been 
engagement with key stakeholders to date, such as the Transport subgroup of the 
Herefordshire Climate and Nature Partnership Board (HCNPB).  Another 
committee member commented that opportunities may have been missed to 
gather different sources of data. 

 
13. The Chairperson emphasised the need for strategies and plans to be rooted in the 

lived experiences of people in Herefordshire and the views of stakeholders.  With 
attention drawn to the six broad themes that emerged from analysis of other LTPs 
(paragraph 36, agenda page 28), the Chairperson commented on the need to 
articulate support for a shift to active travel modes.  It was suggested that the 
objectives could be ordered in terms of people, environment, and economy. 

 
14. The Vice-Chairperson considered that the development of the LTP should be 

embraced as an opportunity, not just to unlock access to funding, and that further 
research and consultation was needed to reflect the needs of the county. 

 
At the conclusion of the debate, the committee discussed potential recommendations 
and the following resolution was agreed.  

15



 

 
Resolved: That it be recommended to the executive: 
 
1. Publish in full all background materials, including but not limited to the 

carbon modelling exercise. 
 

2. Address the inconsistency in the way that carbon emissions are presented 
(by mixing territorial and consumption); publish both consumption and 
territorial emissions for both overall emissions and journey length (if 
possible); and address the issue that this report underplays the importance 
of modal shift for short journeys. 

 
3. Engage immediately and closely with the Transport subgroup of the HCNPB 

as well as other key stakeholders, including National Grid. 
 

4. Engage ASAP with a wide range of stakeholders to collect data as well as 
consult on emerging priorities. 
 

5. Consider the following suggested objectives: 
 

a. Improved road safety 
 

b. Improved residents health 
 

c. Improved range of transport choices including active travel and public 
transport, demand-responsive transport and reliable public EV 
charging infrastructure 

 
d. Improved access to services 

 
e. Carbon reduction (embodied and operational) 

 
f. Nature protection 

 
g. Supporting a sustainably thriving and prosperous economy. 

 
26. WORK PROGRAMME   

 
The committee considered the work programme for the remainder of the municipal year 
2023/24: 
 

 A councillor had suggested ‘Public Rights of Way’ as a topic for potential scrutiny 
activity. 

 A committee member suggested that ‘Bus Franchising’ be added to the long list. 

 A committee member suggested that the item on ‘Herefordshire County Business 
Improvement District’ should instead focus on ‘Hereford Enterprise Zone’. 

 The agenda items for January 2024* (Planning – Delivery of Section 106-Funded 
Projects) and March 2024 (Skills and Apprenticeships) were agreed; for the latter, 
the Statutory Scrutiny Officer noted that matters relating to care leavers could be 
reported into the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee. 

 
Resolved: That the work programme for January 2024* and March 2024 be agreed. 
 
 
 

16



 

27. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING   
 
The date of the next scheduled meeting was identified as Wednesday 10 January 2024.* 
 
[*Note: The next meeting was rescheduled from Wednesday 10 January 2024 to 
Tuesday 27 February 2024, 2.00 pm] 
 

The meeting ended at 1.00 pm Chairperson 

17




	Agenda
	 
	The seven principles of public life (the 'Nolan principles')
	Guide to Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee

	4 Minutes

